
 

 

 
Wednesday, 26 October 2022 
 
To:   Members of the MCA - Local Enterprise Partnership and Appropriate Officers 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby invited to a meeting of the South Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership  to 
be held at South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield, S1 2BQ, on: 
Thursday, 3 November 2022 at 11.00 am for the purpose of transacting the business set 
out in the agenda. 
 
 

 
Martin Swales 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 
  
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Member Distribution 
 
Lucy Nickson (Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Neil MacDonald (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Mayor Oliver Coppard South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority 
Bill Adams TUC Representative 
Joe Chetcuti Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Dan Fell Doncaster Chamber 
Angela Foulkes Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Councillor Terry Fox Sheffield City Council 
Alexa Greaves Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE Barnsley MBC 
Mayor Ros Jones CBE Doncaster MBC 
Peter Kennan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Kevin Kerrigan Sheffield Hallam University - LEP Member 
Professor Koen Lamberts Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Councillor Chris Read Rotherham MBC 
Gemma Smith Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
 



 

 

 
MCA - Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

 
 

Thursday, 3 November 2022 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue: South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield, S1 2BQ 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 
 

Introduction 

1.   Welcome and Apologies  Chair  

2.   Declarations of Interest 

 

 In relation to any agenda item 

 In relation to any activity since the last formal 
meeting 

 In relation to any forthcoming activity 
 

Chair  

3.   Notes of Last Meeting  Chair 5 - 10 

4.   The South Yorkshire Economy - Presentation  Felix Kumi-
Ampofo 

Verbal 

Urgent Items 

5.   New Government Update  Andy Gates Verbal 

6.   Doncaster Sheffield Airport Update  Martin Swales Verbal 

Updates 

7.   Cost of Living Response  Paul Johnson 11 - 14 

8.   UK Shared Prosperity Fund Implementation  Paul Johnson 15 - 20 

Strategy Development 

9.   Investment Zones  Andy Gates 21 - 26 

10.   Cultural and Creative Industries Mapping  Kate Brindley 27 - 70 

Other Business 

11.   The Economic Crisis Impact on Skills - Presentation  Adam 
Greenwood 

Verbal 

12.   Chief Executive's Update  Martin Swales Verbal 

13.   Forward Plan  Chair 71 - 76 

 

Date of next meeting:    Thursday, 12 January 2023 at 11.00 am 



 

 

At:   South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield, S1 2BQ  



MCA - LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP 
 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
THURSDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2022 AT 11.00 AM 
 
VIRTUAL 
 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Lucy Nickson (Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Neil MacDonald (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Joe Chetcuti Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Angela Foulkes Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Alexa Greaves Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Councillor Julie Grocutt (Reserve) Sheffield City Council 
Mayor Ros Jones CBE Doncaster MBC 
Gemma Smith Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
  
Martin Swales Chief Executive and Head of 

Paid Services 
SYMCA Executive Team 

Dr Ruth Adams Deputy Chief Executive SYMCA Executive Team 
Philip Cooper External Affairs Officer  
Laurie Heykoop Senior Economic Policy 

Manager 
 

Sharon Kemp Chief Executive, Rotherham 
MBC 

Rotherham MBC 

Felix Kumi-Ampofo Director of Corporate Policy SYMCA Executive Team 
Alex Linton Head of Transport Development SYMCA Executive Team 
Sarah Pugh Minute Taker  
  
 
GUESTS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
Matt Blackburn BEIS 
Christian Foster Doncaster MBC 
Yasmin Knight University of Sheffield 
 
 
APOLOGIES: 
 
Mayor Oliver Coppard South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 

Authority 
Dan Fell Doncaster Chamber 
Councillor Terry Fox Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE Barnsley MBC 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Peter Kennan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Professor Koen Lamberts Co-opted University LEP Board Member 
Councillor Chris Read Rotherham MBC 
Steve Davenport SYMCA Executive Team 
 
 
39 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 The Chair welcomed attendees to the meeting.  

  
Apologies were noted as above. 
 

40 Matters Arising / Action Log 
 

 It was noted that all open actions were now closed.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the Action Log and updates. 
 

41 Declarations of Interest 
 

 None. 
 

42 Notes of Last Meeting 
 

 RESOLVED: That the notes of the meeting held on 7 July 2022 be agreed as a 
true record. 
 

43 State of the South Yorkshire Economy 
 

 A report on the State of the South Yorkshire Economy was presented which 
highlighted the following issues:  

 Inflation, the Ukraine war, and demand outstripping supply had all 
contributed to increasing prices. 

 Economic inactivity, poverty, employment, and business density were all 
increasing. 

 Healthy life expectancy and redundancies were decreasing. 

 Employment and job postings were stable. 

 South Yorkshire’s industries were particularly vulnerable due to a heavy 
reliance on energy use. 

 The typical cost of household essentials was increasing, with the poorest 
households and ethnic minorities facing the largest decrease in 
discretionary spending, and the highest rates of deep poverty. 

 Businesses would also be impacted by reductions in household 
discretionary spending. 

 Most houses in South Yorkshire had poor energy efficiency (rated D or 
worse) 

 There were 43,000 unemployed and 72,000 households classed as 
workless in the region. 

 During winter, it was expected that over half of South Yorkshire 
households would be in fuel poverty (depending on the extent of the 
Government’s support package). 

 Consumer confidence was at its lowest since 1974 and the Purchasing 

Page 6



 

Managers’ Index had fallen below 50 (which is interpreted as negative). 

 Within the MCA, it had already been seen that promoters had been 
requesting additional funds due to increasing costs. 

  
A discussion was had around the need for a fast and cohesive approach to 
providing support across the region, and it was noted that work was taking 
place across Local Authorities to collate promotion of services such as warm 
places and foodbanks, and to identify gaps in support. 
  
It was also noted that financial support from government was needed to fully 
address these issues, and that expected support was currently limited to a cap 
on energy prices.  
  
The Board offered its full support to all efforts to provide support in the region 
during the cost-of-living crisis.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the update.   
 

44 Levelling Up Fund Bid Update 
 

 An update on the Levelling Up Fund (LUF) Bid was presented, which noted that 
MCAs were able to bid for £20m to £50m for public transport initiatives under 
this scheme.  
  
A bid by the MCA in the first round of funding was rejected, and learning was 
taken from Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, who were the only 
successful MCA in the first round.  
  
A bid had been submitted to the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DfLUHC) in the second round of funding, which focussed on 3 
pillars:  

 Better Planning, which focussed on improving the quality of information 
provided to customers, such as real-time journey information and 
updates. 

 Better Buying, which would seek to implement an integrated ticketing 
system and reduce journey times.  

 Better Journey, which would implement a pilot Demand Responsive 
Transport (DRT) Service in 3 areas in the region. DRT would 
complement existing fixed services and, once software and vehicles are 
purchased, the running of the service would be relatively low cost and 
flexible.  

  
The Board noted that a response had not yet been received from DfLUHC, but 
that work continued on developing an Outline Business Case for the project, 
which could still be taken forward even if the LUF bid was unsuccessful. 
  
It was noted that Local Authorities were also able to submit bids on a broader 
range of themes, and that Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield had all been 
successful in the first round. It was added that Barnsley and Doncaster 
Councils had made bids to the second round of funding, and that these asks 
had been aligned with the MCA bid to avoid duplication.   
  

Page 7



 

The Board gave its full support to the bid, and also voiced the support of Peter 
Kennan, who was not in attendance.   
  
RESOLVED: to note the update and to continue to support the Bid. 
 

45 Change of Agenda Order 
 

 It was agreed to change the order in which items were considered at the 
meeting.  Item 8 on the agenda was taken as the next item, followed by item 7 
and then item 9.  The minutes reflect the order of the meeting.  
 

46 Environmental Sustainability Plan 
 

 A report on the Environmental Sustainability Plan was given. The drivers 
behind developing this plan were noted as being: 

 A comprehensive approach to the natural environment had been 
committed to in the Strategic Economic Plan. 

 The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs had committed 
to a Local Nature Recovery Strategy – a responsibility which the MCA 
had taken on responsibility for. 

 The Mayor had committed to developing a South Yorkshire Natural 
Wildlife Strategy in his manifesto. 

 
The MCA committed to Net Zero, worked with partners to produce the 
Connected by Water plan, invested in Woodland Creation and now has 
statutory responsibility for Local Nature Recovery. All these need to be brought 
together into one cohesive plan.  
 
The outcomes of the Environmental Sustainability Plan were expected to be:  

 To articulate a vision which would be put to the public and stakeholders. 

 To develop conceptual frameworks and evidence bases which would fit 
with this vision. 

 To develop actions and possible responses. 

 To publish commitment to these actions alongside partners. 
 
A question was raised about how the 2020 Energy Strategy would fit in to the 
plan. It was noted that this work was still relevant, and would form part of the 
overall Environmental Plan, but that the key focus was to identify where there 
were gaps in the MCAs workstreams.   
 
More detail was requested regarding how the development of the Plan would 
be resourced. An explanation was given that there is a team in place, and that 
it was expected that funding would be made available for further posts from the 
Local Nature Recovery Strategy. 
 
A discussion was had around engaging young people as key stakeholders and 
ambassadors in the plan, as well as the of utilising existing narratives such as 
the Outdoor City campaign. It was noted that the Climate Assembly and the 
Youth Combined Authority would be used as opportunities to secure the 
involvement of young people. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the update.  

Page 8



 

 
47 Doncaster Sheffield Airport Update 

 
 An update on Doncaster Sheffield Airport (DSA) was given, and it was noted 

that the closure of the airport would risk 2713 jobs, and an annual revenue of 
£108m.  
  
It was noted that a negotiating team had been formed and extensive work had 
been undertaken including the commissioning of consultants with aviation 
expertise. An advisory group of South Yorkshire businesses had also been 
created, and an impact assessment on closure of the airport commissioned.  
  
Local Authorities had made clear that every option for saving the airport should 
be considered, and that detailed research had been undertaken in exploring 
opportunities for alternative ownership of and investment in the Airport, with 
over 150 organisations having been approached.  
  
The Board welcomed the work of the MCA on this issue, including that it had 
recently been raised in the House of Commons.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the update.  
  
 

48 Chief Executive's Update 
 

 The SYMCA Chief Executive presented an update to the Board, noting that: 

 Active engagement was taking place to raise the profile of issues in the 
region (DSA, cost of living, housing and key investment opportunities) 
with the new Prime Minister and Cabinet 

 The proposed closure of DSA was a significant piece of work for the 
MCA  

 Work was ongoing to provide support to residents as a result of changes 
to the bus network. A successful public consultation had been 
undertaken, and Leaders have agreed to protect at-risk school buses for 
2 years. The government has also announced an extension of at least 3 
months to the Bus Recovery Grant 

 The Housing and Infrastructure Board had agreed an open call for £35m 
of Brownfield Housing funding 

 The Mayor had celebrated 100 days in office, and conducted a 
successful Question Time event with young people in the region. 
  

RESOLVED: to note the update. 
 

 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

Page 9



 

 
Date 

 

Page 10



 
Committee/Board Name and Date of Meeting: 

Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

Meeting Date: 
03 November 2022 

 
Report Title 

Cost-of-Living Response 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Felix Kumi-Ampofo, Director of Corporate Policy 
 
Report Author(s): 
Paul Johnson, Senior Economic Policy Manager 
Paul.johnson@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 

 
Executive Summary 
The cost-of-living crisis is deepening and will be felt more widely over the coming months. The 
report outlines what the Mayor and MCA have done so far to help communities and seeks input 
from the LEP Board to underpin the response for businesses.   
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
South Yorkshire is vulnerable entering this crisis with high rates of poverty and a high share of 
energy intensive businesses. Furthermore, the long-term structural weaknesses mean South 
Yorkshire’s economy is not the most resilient, despite its many opportunities. The potential 
implications of this cost-of-living crisis for people and businesses in South Yorkshire are 
striking, which necessitates a regional response to complement local and national efforts.  
 

Recommendations   
That the Board: 

• Notes the interventions approved at the October MCA Board. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



• Considers whether there are interventions the MCA should consider to support the 
business community and respond to the challenges caused by rising energy prices, 
increased borrowing costs and a possible scaling back of consumer and business 
demand. 

 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Mayoral Combined Authority Board 18 October 2022 
  
  
  

 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 At its meeting on 18 October, the MCA agreed to a range of interventions to 

support the most in need across South Yorkshire. The Board approved the release 
of up to £2m of MCA funds to spearhead an immediate local cost-of-living 
response. Whilst these interventions will not fix the crisis, they are intended to help 
complement existing measures. 

  
1.2 

Three intervention proposals were approved. 

i) Transport Investment – to help keep people moving to access leisure 
activities and jobs, the MCA Board decided to implement a £2 per adult 
single journey ahead of the implementation of the Government funded 
scheme that will be live from January.  

ii) Food Security – funding to support a region-wide food-security 
package. Engagement with partners has shown that there are different 
requirements in different parts of the region. In some areas, existing 
provision could be amplified and in some areas gaps could be filled. 

iii) UK Shared Prosperity Fund - The MCA has been working with local 
authorities to shape and plan Shared Prosperity Fund delivery with the 
agreed focus of year one activity being on supporting communities 
through the cost-of-living challenge.  

  
1.3 These three elements are also supported through the development of a webpage 

with advice for households and businesses, joint working with South Yorkshire 
Community Foundation on a donations scheme and coordinating a data response 
to ensure both the design and the targeting of interventions are based on 
evidence. 
 

1.4 Whilst the MCA and LEP do not have the resources to offer significant support to 
businesses to help them respond to increased costs there may be other ways in 
which businesses can support their communities and other businesses. 
 

2. Key Issues 
  

2.1 There are some potential areas of focus that the Board is asked to provide a steer 
on as we continue to refine the response and offer to businesses.  

Our response could include: 

Page 12



- Working to help businesses do more to support employees: for 
example, paying the Real Living Wage and identifying at risk employees 
and supporting them as needed. 

- Working with businesses to better understand and support at risk and 
more vulnerable communities and customers: for example, ensuring 
support remains in place for local charitable contributions, employee 
volunteering and sharing goods and services in communities in need. 

- Supporting businesses to ensure prompt payment of suppliers and 
supporting local supply chains – and for the public sector to ensure it 
pays invoices promptly. 

- Business support to help reduce energy costs and usage – including 
communicating support that may be available 

- Engaging with government to ensure particular South Yorkshire 
challenges are heard: for example pressing the Government to support 
businesses with high energy usage. 

  
3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 
 N/A 

  
  
3.4 Option 1 Risks and Mitigations: 
 N/A 

 
3.5 Option 2 
 N/A 

  
3.8 Option 2 Risks and Mitigations: 
 N/A 
  
  
3.13 Recommended Option 
 N/A 
  
4. Consultation on Proposal: 
  
4.1 N/A 
  
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 Feedback is welcomed during the meeting, or in the following weeks via email or 

meetings with MCA officers. 
  
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 N/A 
  

Page 13



  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 N/A 
  
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no known HR implications as a result of this paper. 
  
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 Many of these impacts will be worse on the most vulnerable groups of society, and 

any response should be tailored to respond. 
  
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 Longer-term, how South Yorkshire deals with energy, including retrofitting, is key 

to this agenda, but there is limited amount that can be done at a regional level to 
help with the immediate crisis.  

  
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 There are no known ICT implications as a result of this paper. 
  
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice:   
12.1 N/A 

 
List of Appendices Included 
None 
 
   

Background Papers 
None 
  
  

 
 

Page 14



 
Committee/Board Name and Date of Meeting: 

Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

Meeting Date: 
03 November 2022 

 
Report Title 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund Implementation 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
  

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Felix Kumi-Ampofo, Director of Corporate Policy 
 
Report Author(s): 
Paul Johnson, Senior Economic Policy Manager  
Paul.johnson@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 
This paper provides an update on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF), particularly the 
South Yorkshire allocation, progress to date, and the key business focused interventions that 
South Yorkshire will prioritise in newly commissioned activity. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
The UKSPF is a key fund for economic development and will impact on the quality of life and 
growth opportunities of residents, businesses, and places in South Yorkshire. 
 

Recommendations   
That the Board notes the update on progress in shaping what the UKSPF will look like in South 
Yorkshire and the proposed interventions. 

 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Mayoral Combined Authority Board 06 June 2022 
  

 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 The UKSPF is the Government’s major economic development fund to replace EU 

Structural and Investment Funds (ESIF). It is a largely revenue fund aiming to boost 
productivity, tackle geographical inequalities and improve life chances, especially in 
deprived areas.  

  
1.2 Government has pre-allocated funds for every part of the UK for the years 2022-23, 

2023-24 and 2024-25. The figures below are the sum totals for all three years. 
South Yorkshire has been allocated £46.2m, made up of £7.3m Multiply and 
£38.9m “Core” UKSPF. Whilst the SPF scales up to what the UK used to receive 
annually from ESIF (c.£1.5bn per year) in 2024/25, it is still nearly half (c.£15m) of 

what the region used to receive (c.£25m per annum) over the three-year period. 
  
1.3 An Investment Plan was submitted to Government in August to unlock funding. 

Government committed to respond by early October. However, at the time of 
writing, no feedback has been offered to any MCA or local authority.  

  
1.4 The South Yorkshire submission picked up on the SEP objectives to build a 

stronger, fairer, and greener local economy that materially improves the life 
chances of our whole population (especially the most deprived) and boosts pride 
and confidence. The primary ambition is to focus SPF on driving up levels of 
economic activity and community participation. 

  
  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 A suite of interventions was identified in the Investment Plan to enable individuals, 

organisations, and local communities to be successful and resilient. In line with the 
three national investment priorities, and co-designed by the MCA, Local Authorities 
and partners, seven local themes were identified: 
 
Places and Communities  

• Supporting communities to address cost of living  

• Promoting the cultural and visitor economy 
 
Supporting Local Businesses  

• Providing a total business support offer 

• Driving up R&D and innovation 

• Stimulating enterprise and growth 
 
People and Skills  

• Ensuring skills training is accessible to all  

• Promoting a skills-driven green economy 
 
Within this, 20 interventions were selected from a government provided list: 
 

• Community cost of living 

Page 16



• Improving town centres 

• Volunteering, enrichment support 

• Volunteering, social action 

• VCSE capacity building 

• Community infrastructure 

• Visitor economy 

• Arts, culture, heritage, creative 

• Cultural heritage organisations 

• Entrepreneur ecosystem support 

• Enterprise advice and training support 

• Targeted employment growth support 

• Social economy support 

• Retail services infrastructure 

• Economically inactive in employment 

• Targeted in-work support 

• Local areas skills support 

• Decarbonisation infrastructure 

• Green skills support 

• Carbon sectors retraining 
 
This formed the basis of the Investment Plan. Most of the work since then has been 
with the local authorities to develop a process of how we work effectively together 
in delivering UKSPF in South Yorkshire.  

  

2.2 To inform the intervention design, an external assessment of European funded 
business support projects has been commissioned to help determine what should be 
continued, reshaped, or not delivered in the future. 

  

  
3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 
 N/A 

  
  
3.4 Option 1 Risks and Mitigations: 
 N/A 

 
3.5 Option 2 
 N/A 

  
  
3.8 Option 2 Risks and Mitigations:   
 N/A 
  
3.13 Recommended Option 
 N/A 
  
4. Consultation on Proposal: 
  

Page 17



4.1 The focus of discussions around process has been with the four local authorities, 
but as part of the Investment Plan development a wide range of partners have been 
consulted, including the third sector, HE and FE, MPs, and other partners who have 
delivered previous EU investments. Webinars were also organised to share 
information and elicit input. More engagement, including with the LEP will occur as 
plans are developed. The Partnership Group will have a key role in shaping 
delivery. 

  
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 Announcements from Government have already been delayed; however, work is 

still progressing to agree the process of delivery. The delivery model for Year 1 will 
be signed off imminently, and the aim is to agree the approach for Years 2 and 3 by 
the end of 2022. 

  
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice: 
  
6.1 Funding is confirmed for three financial years: 2022-23, 2023-24, and 2024-25. The 

Government will pay SYMCA annually in advance on a “use it or lose it basis”. In 
2022-23, funding will be paid once the local investment plan has been signed off. In 
2023-24 and 2024-25, funding will be released at the start of the financial year.  

  
6.2 The resourcing requirements associated with being a Lead Authority will 

necessitate the development of a resource plan. The Government guidance states 
that all lead authorities can use “up to 4% of their UKSPF allocation to support the 
delivery of their chosen interventions and by exception, lead authorities will be able 
to use more than 4% if required”. 

  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 The Assurance Framework sets MCA compliance and governance. The 

requirements of UKSPF will be reviewed as part of the annual process and will be 
updated, if necessary. 

  
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 The MCA, as the Lead Authority, will require additional capability and capacity to 

deliver the fund and maximise the impact and uptake. So far, a full-time position for 
programme coordinator has been established, with support from other parts of the 
organisation.  

  
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 Inclusion was a key part of South Yorkshire’s Investment Plan with deprived areas 

being a focus for delivery. Additionally, community participation is one of the main 
aims of the programme. 

  
  

Page 18



10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 Adapting to climate change is a part of the Investment Plan, especially for the Skills 

element with green skills and retraining for high carbon sectors being key 
interventions.  

  
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 It is expected that the functions of the Lead Authority can be contained within the 

current technology available to the MCA, e.g. the utilisation of VERTO for 
programme and project management. This will be monitored for sufficiency, and 
any gaps considered as part of the MCA Business Planning process.  

  
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice: 

 
12.1 The UK SPF prospectus provides clear guidance on branding and communications. 

This is usual for government funds including the Local Growth Fund. A schedule of 
branding and communication requirements will be developed and added to all 
funding agreements. 
 

List of Appendices Included 
None  
 
   

Background Papers 

None 
  
  

 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Mayoral Combined Authority Board 
 

18 October 2022 
 

South Yorkshire Investment Zone – Status Update 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press and public? No 
  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?         
                            

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan?           
 

No 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Martin Swales, Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Andrew Gates, Assistant Director of External Affairs 
Andrew.Gates@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk  
 
Dominic Jones, Corporate Policy Officer 
Dominic.Jones@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
South Yorkshire MCA is one of the MCAs and Upper Tier Local Authority areas to have 
submitted a formal Expression of Interest (EoI) to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing 
and Communities (DLUHC) to establish Investment Zone sites in the region. 
 
This report sets out the position of the Combined Authority on Investment Zones, the details of 
the formal Expression of Interest (EoI) and the framework for engagement with Government as 
the implementation process continues.  
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Investment Zones have the potential to boost our competitiveness and showcase what clean, 
inclusive, growth could and should look like in our major growth centres by helping to unlock 
additional investment, attract new businesses into the region and supporting existing 
businesses to grow faster. 
 
Recommendations:   

Page 21

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Andrew.Gates@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


That Board members: 

• Note the submission of an Investment Zone EOI from the MCA. 

• Engage in a discussion against the key questions raised in section 2.2. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
N/A 
  

 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 South Yorkshire MCA is one of several MCAs and Upper Tier Local Authority 

areas that has submitted an Investment Zone Expression of Interest (EoI) to 
Government on the 14th of October 2022. 
 
This set out the intention of the MCA to use financial incentives in chosen sites 
across the region to accelerate growth, particularly in existing economic clusters, 
to enable the region to compete nationally and globally. 

  
1.2 Alongside the submission of the EOI, the MCA is preparing some underlying 

principles for the region’s engagement with Government on Investment Zones. 
These include: 

  

• Government providing certainty in terms of pace and the process of scheme 
delivery 

• No undermining of environmental standards to ensure creating stronger and 
more sustainable communities 

• Ensuring Investment Zones foster investor friendly and good planning 
practices  

• Greater clarity as early as possible on the particular benefits of Investment 
Zone status on specific sites 

• Ensuring a wider x-government approach to support sites by ensuring all 
departments that have an impact on growth support IZ delivery (e.g. Trade 
and Investment). 

 
  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Policy Framework 

The MCA worked with constituent Local Authorities in Investment Zone sites to 
ensure alignment with the Strategic Economic Plan and the MCA’s other objectives 
in relation to transport, regeneration, and tackling local challenges.  
 
The sites submitted to Government were as follows: 
 

• Goldthorpe Investment Zone 
Mixed Use site of 26.3 hectares intended to create 2,413 gross jobs and 638 
new houses  

 

• Northeast Doncaster 
Mixed Use site of 502 hectares intended to create 16,000 new jobs and 3,350 
residential dwellings 

Page 22



• Doncaster City Centre 
Mixed Use site of c.110 hectares with the potential to regenerate Doncaster 
City Centre through better employment opportunities, new commercial 
accommodation, residential development and inward investment. 

 

• Sheffield Olympic Legacy Park (AMID) 
Commercial site of 32.4 hectares intended to create 5,800 additional jobs 

 

• Sheffield Business Park & University of Sheffield Innovation District (AMID) 
Commercial site of 45.6 hectares intended to create 3,124 additional jobs 

 

• River Don District (AMID) 
Commercial site of 18.4 hectares intended to create 5,000 additional jobs 

 

• Wider Sheffield-Rotherham Economic Corridor 
Mixed Use site with potential to provide better employment opportunities, 
housing and inward investment to connect with existing nearby clusters in 
advanced manufacturing, R&D and retail developments. 

 

• Sheffield Station Sheaf Valley 
Mixed Use site of 4.94 hectares intended to create 760 new houses, 7,800sqm 
office space, 11,700 sqm ground floor commercial space and 2,975 sqm 
ancillary space 

 

• Moorfoot (Sheffield) 
Residential site of 8.6 hectares intended to create 2,120 new houses 

 

• Furnace Hill (Sheffield) 
Residential site of 5.91 hectares intended to create 846 new houses 

 

• Neepsend (Sheffield) 
Residential site of 2.6 hectares intended to create 1,005 new houses 

 
The MCA submission, on the basis that Doncaster Sheffield Airport (DSA) remains 
an operational airport, also included the potential for DSA and the adjacent 
Gateway East site to be considered. 
 
A response from Government is expected within the coming weeks with details of 
decisions on each of the sites including which incentives can and will be applied. 
 
 

2.2 
Discussion points 

As the IZ policy develops and further clarity emerges on the site selection and 
benefits to IZ status the MCA and LEP will want to consider a number of issues. 

on how IZs can help South Yorkshire can leverage greater investment and better 
enable fairer, sustainable growth. 

These issues include: 

i) How can the public and private sectors work together to develop an 
approach to simplified planning processes that deliver the type of 
development we want at the pace needed? To what extent does the 

Page 23



existing system deliver the pace and confidence investors need to create 
growth? 

ii) Should the public and private sector develop a framework that 
demonstrates and codifies an approach to limiting the displacement of 
jobs and investment from within the region – ensuring that we deliver 
additional new investment rather than moving economic activity around 
the region? 

iii) Exploring to what extent the region’s focus should be on supporting 
growth on the Investment Zones versus ensuring growth takes places at 
other non-IZ sites across the region – how / should we be seeking 
balance? 

iv) How can stakeholders in South Yorkshire, including the private sector, 
work together to develop a single narrative for Investment Zones and the 
opportunities they provide for growth and development in the region? 

 

3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 

 
N/A 

  
3.2 Option 1 Risks and Mitigations:   
 
3.2.1 
 
 

  
N/A  

3.3 Recommended Option 
 

 N/A 
  
4. Engagement on Proposal  
  
4.1 Further engagement is needed, with the private sector here in South Yorkshire to 

help explore the attractiveness of the proposals and to understand how the 
proposed incentives would be best targeted across any proposed Investment Zone 
sites.  

  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision:   
  
5.1 
 
 
 
5.2 

The Government have indicated that they would expect to see Investment Zone 
designation and the benefits of that designation to be in place by April 2023. Some 
of the proposed benefits of Investment Zone status (i.e., planning reforms) will 
require primary legislation and as such will be aligned and reliant upon the 
necessary legislation passing through Parliament.  

  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 Whilst there are no immediate financial implications arising from this report, if 

successful, the proposals would lead to significant change in the tools available to 
the region to develop key growth zones. 

Page 24



 

  
6.2 The report notes the potential for tax incentives and single growth funding 

settlements, the benefits of which may accrue to the MCA or partners. 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 Initial government guidance indicates that the benefits of Investment Zone status 

being conferred on an area will be conditional on the MCA and local partners 
honouring the commitments made in the EOI and subsequent negotiation and on 
local consent and Parliamentary approval of any legislation. 

  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no direct implications at this stage. 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 The Government’s initial public guidance stated that Investment Zones will be 

conditional on the Public Sector Equality Duty, with further guidance expected on 
this from them.  
 

10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 The MCA remains committed to a Net Zero South Yorkshire and will be working 

with Natural England and DEFRA to develop a Local Nature Recovery Strategy. 
 
This will strengthen the commitment to nature and biodiversity and place it as a 
pillar of MCA activity on creating stronger and more sustainable communities 
alongside greener, sustainable growth. 
 
Investment Zones should not undermine and allow for a reduction in environmental 
protections. 

  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 There are no known ICT implications as a result of this paper. 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice 

 
12.1 Communications and Marketing resource will be directed to support further 

engagement with partners and stakeholders to support successful implementation 
of the proposed sites in the Expression of Interest (EOI), subject to national 
Government approval.  
 

List of Appendices Included: 
None 
   

Background Papers: 
None 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

03 November 2022 
 

South Yorkshire Cultural and Creative Industries 
data mapping & research report 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? No 
  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?   
                                  

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan?                    Not a Key Decision 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Martin Swales, Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Kate Brindley, Project Director, Arts, Culture & Heritage 
kate.brindley@SouthYorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 
 

Executive Summary 
SYMCA recently commissioned a report to map Cultural and Creative Industries across 
South Yorkshire, to provide evidence for policy, identify strengths and opportunities and 
propose recommendations on how this sector could be strengthened. This evidence 
suggests the sectors are key to our regional economy and identity, and therefore should be 
priority sectors for the MCA. 
 
The key findings and recommendations are included in the report attached and a set of 
slides will be presented to the Board at its November meeting. The Board are asked to 
endorse the report findings and recommendations and offer guidance on their 
implementation.  
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
The Cultural and Creative Sectors in South Yorkshire contribute approximately £2 billion to 
GVA and employ over 30,000 people in 4000 businesses. These are growing sectors which 
not only provide employment but also contributes to the quality of place, life and reputation 
of the region. There is an opportunity to promote and grow this sector to attract investment 
and jobs into South Yorkshire. The report provides an up-to-date evidence base and 
highlights the sector specific opportunities and challenges. 
 

Recommendations  
1. LEP Board Members are asked to endorse the report and recommendations, consider 

the implications for South Yorkshire and provide their expertise on how the 
recommendations can be implemented.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 10

mailto:kate.brindley@SouthYorkshire-ca.gov.uk


2. Additionally, the Co-Chairs of the Business Growth Board and Employment and Skills 
Board are asked to champion the creative and cultural sectors at these Boards and 
take forward this report and recommendations for discussion on the opportunities they 
present for the region.  

  

 
1.  Background  
1.1 There is an increasing recognition of the opportunity that the creative and cultural 

sectors represent to not only economic growth and recovery, but also for healthy and 
sustainable communities, strong local identities, and vibrant places across the region. 
This is highlighted throughout the MCA’s recent strategies such as Strategic 
Economic Plan and was recognised by the Mayor in his manifesto. A turning point was 
the publication of the Chamberlain Walker report in 2020 (https://southyorkshire-
ca.gov.uk/news/article/9f7dffbd-7c6d-4928-9dd4-8a031de25c9e) and the landmark £1 
million agreed in September 2021 for the sector which was so hard hit during the 
pandemic 

  
1.2 To build the case for intervention at a regional level, SYMCA have commissioned two 

separate research pieces: 

• Cultural and Creative Industries Mapping - to profile and assess the strengths, 
weaknesses and opportunities within the commercial creative sector across South 
Yorkshire and offer recommendations for future areas of priority and action. This 
data will serve as an evidence base and rationale to assess and develop the case 
for investment in creative industries. The research looked at skills pathways and 
provision within the Creative Industries. The 5th Sector were commissioned to 
carry out this research and their findings are appended to this report. 
 

• Engagement with the sector - a programme of engagement with the region wide 
sector to inform the development of a strategic framework for action and 
investment priorities, plus to build capacity in the sector moving forward.  It is 
critical that our strategy is informed through a thorough and open dialogue with 
sector stakeholders in a far-reaching and participatory process, with a clear focus 
on our primary aim to reverse the trend of under-investment in South Yorkshire. 
Opus Independents were commissioned to complete this work, the full report will 
be published this autumn and complements the mapping study being presented 
today. 
 

Both reports were overseen by steering groups comprising regional and national 
stakeholders including representatives from the local authorities. 

  
1.3 This commission aligns with the ambition in the SEP to deliver a stronger,  

fairer, and greener economy that works for everyone and explicitly recognises cultural 
and creative places and people within that strategic aim.  

  
1.4 This research provides a comprehensive evidence base for the sector and identifies 

specific challenges and opportunities that require support from the LEP, MCA and 
partners to unlock some of the sub-region's untapped potential and accelerate its 
growth, impact and reputation. 

  

Page 28

https://southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/news/article/9f7dffbd-7c6d-4928-9dd4-8a031de25c9e
https://southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/news/article/9f7dffbd-7c6d-4928-9dd4-8a031de25c9e


2. Key Issues 
 

2.1 Key Headline Findings: 
- The contribution of the cultural and creative industries (CCI) to the economy is 

consistently underestimated – these findings suggest that culture and creative 

industries are worth up to £2 billion in GVA. 

o In depth research has uncovered that the sector has many more people 

employed than official statistics say – 13,500 official vs 31,350  

o This is because they miss a significant freelance creative workforce and 

micro-enterprises  

o And when comparing different data sources wide discrepancies are 

found in the estimates of the number of CCI businesses – we actually 

have more than 4,000 of these businesses in the region compared to 

other data sources which provide estimates of 2,900 businesses 

- There has been steady growth in ‘active’ registered CCI businesses over the 

past decade, with a notable uptick in growth during the pandemic  

- We have particular strengths in creative content businesses, and with our 

digital capabilities, we could be well positioned to exploit the growth in demand 

for both high end television and short form content of all kinds. 

- Although there are a high number of start-ups there is little evidence of scale-

up activity amongst CCI businesses with only 101 companies having ever 

accessed grants for R&D. 

- Each LA has distinct and complementary areas of growth and potential, and an 

approach that recognises these as regional assets is beneficial  

 

Recommendations:  

- Act quickly to redress the shortfalls in investment in its creative sector over the 

last decade, both in absolute terms and relative to competitor cities and city 

regions across the North. 

 
- Ensure that city region marketing promotes well-established creative 

conferences and marketplaces, such as the Children’s Media Festival and 

Sheffield DocFest, alongside the work of arts and cultural institutions. 

 
- Convene regional policy forums both for overall coordination of creative sector 

investment, to promote more joined up provision of creative skills and 

marketing of creative skills pathways 

 
- Interventions need to support the principle of ‘doing things weirdly’ to ensure 

that delivery reflects the priorities and operating models of creative businesses 

themselves. This means gearing business support and investment around what 

works – established and successful programmes delivered in both public and 

private sectors – and taking risks in advance of private sector investors to show 

confidence in the sector. 

 
- Convene, hold space, broker and facilitate forums to address equality, diversity 

and inclusion (EDI) collectively and in a way that is reflective of the people of 

South Yorkshire as it is now and how it will be. SYMCA has a critical role in 

Page 29



ensuring that EDI is an approach not just an outcome – and its leadership will 

mean it and the creative sector can flex and adapt as both local and national 

societal environments change. 

 
- The sector needs to be respected for the value it brings; 

o Economic contribution  

o Public good – as a tool for addressing collective problems (e.g. isolation, 

community cohesion, wellbeing)  

o Quality and pride of place  

 

The Mayor, and the MCA, have an important role to play in this space.  

We require a regional overarching narrative of place, culture and creativity whilst 

appreciating the distinct identities and strengths of our local authority areas. 

 
The summary of key themes for the MCA and LEP from the recommendations are: 
 

o Promotion of the sector and developing a South Yorkshire narrative with 
Culture and Creativity as a key component 
 

o Create better enabling conditions for start-ups, networking, innovation 
and growth which is targeted to the needs of these businesses 

 
o Invest in Skills development 

 
o Activity to address EDI is critical 

  

2.2 A presentation of the research findings and recommendations will be provided during 
the meeting. 

  
 

3. Recommendations 
 

 This research was commissioned to provide the Board and MCA detailed intelligence 
to consider future priorities linked to the recommendations contained in the report. The 
findings contribute to our evidence base that demonstrates the creative and cultural 
sectors as key to the regional economy and identity, and therefore as priority sectors 
for the MCA. These sectors will require recognition, support and investment within 
SYMCA and at regional level to thrive.  
 
The Board are asked to endorse the following recommendations, consider the 
implications for South Yorkshire and provide their expertise on how the 
recommendations can be implemented.  
 

- Act quickly to redress the shortfalls in investment in its creative sector over the 

last decade, both in absolute terms and relative to competitor cities and city 

regions across the North. 

 
- Ensure that city region marketing promotes well-established creative 

conferences and marketplaces, such as the Children’s Media Festival and 

Sheffield DocFest, alongside the work of arts and cultural institutions. 

 

Page 30



- Convene regional policy forums both for overall coordination of creative sector 

investment, to promote more joined up provision of creative skills and 

marketing of creative skills pathways 

 
- Interventions need to support the principle of ‘doing things weirdly’ to ensure 

that delivery reflects the priorities and operating models of creative businesses 

themselves. This means gearing business support and investment around what 

works – established and successful programmes delivered in both public and 

private sectors – and taking risks in advance of private sector investors to show 

confidence in the sector. 

 
- Convene, hold space, broker and facilitate forums to address equality, diversity 

and inclusion (EDI) collectively and in a way that is reflective of the people of 

South Yorkshire as it is now and how it will be. SYMCA has a critical role in 

ensuring that EDI is an approach not just an outcome – and its leadership will 

mean it and the creative sector can flex and adapt as both local and national 

societal environments change. 

 
- The sector needs to be respected for the value it brings; 

o Economic contribution  

o Public good – as a tool for addressing collective problems (e.g. isolation, 

community cohesion, wellbeing)  

o Quality and pride of place  

 
The Co-Chairs of the Business Growth Board and Employment and Skills Board are 
asked to champion the creative and cultural sectors at these Boards and take forward 
this report and recommendations for discussion on the opportunities they present for 
the region. 
 

  

4. Consultation on Proposal  
  
4.1 Quantitative and qualitative methods were used in this research, with stakeholders 

from public, private and academic organisations consulted. 
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 Some of the recommendation will inform the work of the Innovation and Business 

Boards and any further implementation will then depend on the outcome of the 
Board’s deliberations and eventual MCA Board decisions.  

  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no further direct financial implications at this stage. 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 There are no legal implications at this stage, however any investment required via the 

MCA, will be considered and developed in the line with the MCA approved Assurance 
Framework. 

  

Page 31



8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no HR implications at this stage 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 Equality and diversity are at the core of this research. All recommendations will 

improve equality and diversity in South Yorkshire.  
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no direct climate change implications at this stage 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 There are no ICT implications at this stage 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   
  
12.1 SYMCA will disseminate the findings through its usual channels. 

 
List of Appendices Included 
A SYMCA Cultural and Creative Industries Data Research and Mapping Report June 

2022  
   

Background Papers 
None. 

 

Page 32



SYMCA Cultural and Creative Industries 

Data research and mapping 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft report 

 

June 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 33



Contents 

Executive summary ..............................................................................................................................................................................1 

Background ......................................................................................................................................................................................1 

Findings – scale and significance of the sector ................................................................................................................................1 

Opportunities ....................................................................................................................................................................................1 

1. Creative employment and workforce data .....................................................................................................................................3 

Addressing gaps in the official record ...............................................................................................................................................6 

2. Mapping cultural and creative enterprises in South Yorkshire ......................................................................................................9 

Location of South Yorkshire’s creative businesses ......................................................................................................................... 12 

3. Sector output ............................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Interpretation of CCI sector output data .......................................................................................................................................... 17 

Trends analysis: new business formation and survival ................................................................................................................... 20 

Interpreting the data on business formations .................................................................................................................................. 24 

The creative growth paradox .......................................................................................................................................................... 24 

4. People and skills ......................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

Creative skills pathways ................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

Equality, diversity and inclusion ...................................................................................................................................................... 31 

5. Local authority consultation ......................................................................................................................................................... 33 

6. Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................................... 34 

P
age 34



 1 

Executive summary

Background 

The Fifth Sector began work on data research and mapping of 
the creative sectors in South Yorkshire in December 2021. 
The work had two main objectives: 

• To provide evidence for policy by: 
o Addressing gaps in evidence. 
o Taking an asset-based approach (i.e., focussing 

on what is here, and the opportunities it presents 
for further investment and growth, not what isn’t 
here). 

o Providing a robust evidence base that would 
both, “Support, develop and advocate for this 
sector in the future” and “Inform the 
development of a wider South Yorkshire Arts, 
Culture and Heritage strategy.” 

• To identify opportunities for new investment, 
including: 

o Arts Council England and DCMS priorities 
o Other public sector “levelling up” funds 
o Increased employer investment in training and 

skills 
o Business start up, scale up and inward 

investment 

Our research took in both measurement (using a range of 
source to map the scale, significance and distribution of South 
Yorkshire’s cultural and creative industries and its creative 
workforce, and the provision of creative skills training and 
education in and around South Yorkshire) and engagement, 

including with local creative and digital businesses, regional 
and national sector organisations, education and training 
providers and round tables with each of the region’s four local 
authorities. 

Findings – scale and significance of the sector 

Our research demonstrated that South Yorkshire’s creative 
industries comprise over 4,000 companies and a workforce of 
over 31,000 people. Both these figures are larger than 
suggested by national statistics (2,895 businesses and 13,500 
employees, respectively).  

The region demonstrates clustering of some creative sectors, 
including Architecture, Crafts, Design and Publishing, mostly 
centred on Sheffield; but overall it has a smaller creative and 
digital business base than other core cities and city regions. 

Whilst the structure of the sector – which reflects the high 
levels of freelance working and microenterprises typical of 
creative industries everywhere – makes it hard to provide 
exact measures of output, we suggest that culture and 
creative industries are worth up to £2 billion in GVA. 

Opportunities 

Our findings highlighted both sustained growth in the sector 
over the last decade and a much higher proportion of creative 
content businesses than identified in national figures. This 
combination of content and digital capability means that South 
Yorkshire could be well positioned to exploit the growth in 
demand for both high end television and short form content of 
all kinds.  

P
age 35



 2 

There are some time-limited opportunities which need to be 
seized now, and in which SYMCA needs to show leadership 
in supporting and coordinating the activities of local 
authorities, the education sector, private sector business 
support and training providers and pan-regional and national 
agencies. These include: 

• Identification of Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham as 
eligible areas for ‘Levelling Up for Culture’ funding. 

• Arts Council England’s nomination of Barnsley and 
Rotherham as ‘Priority Places’ within its ten-year Let’s 
Create strategy. 

• Building on the distinctiveness and excellence of local 
initiatives, including Barnsley DMC and the Children’s 
Capital of Culture in Rotherham, to take a leading role 
in the NP11’s efforts to argue for greater devolution of 
funding for culture from Whitehall. 

However, if it is to do that it needs to: 

• Act quickly to redress the shortfalls in investment in its 
creative sector over the last decade, both in absolute 
terms and relative to competitor cities and city regions 
across the North. 

• Ensure that city region marketing promotes well-
established creative conferences and marketplaces, 
such as the Children’s Media Festival and Sheffield 
DocFest, alongside the work of arts and cultural 
institutions. 

• Convene regional policy forums both for overall 
coordination of creative sector investment, to promote 
more joined up provision of creative skills and 
marketing of creative skills pathways, and to ensure 
that recommendations of other reports, such as the 

South Yorkshire Regional Music Report, are 
understood and followed through by educational 
institutions, national agencies and the public sector, 
acting in concert. 

• Interventions need to support the principle of ‘doing 
things weirdly’ to ensure that delivery reflects the 
priorities and operating models of creative businesses 
themselves. This means gearing business support and 
investment around what works – established and 
successful programmes delivered in both public and 
private sectors – and taking risks in advance of private 
sector investors to show confidence in the sector. 

• Provide financial support to sector organisations, 
including Screen Yorkshire, to ensure that they can 
continue to deliver services and investment support to 
residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 

• Convene, hold space, broker and facilitate forums to 
address equality, diversity and inclusion collectively 
and in a way that is reflective of the people of South 
Yorkshire as it is now and how it will be. SYMCA has a 
critical role in ensuring that EDI is an approach not just 
an outcome – and its leadership will mean it and the 
creative sector can flex and adapt as both local and 
national societal environments change. 

P
age 36



 3 

1. Creative employment and workforce data

The “official” count of employment in the cultural and creative 
industries (CCI) is taken from the Office of National Statistics’ 
annual Business Register and Employment Survey (BRES)1. 
The latest data available are those for the year to April 2020 –
immediately prior to the first ‘lockdown’. They show total 

sector employment of 13,500, with IT, software and computer 
services as the largest sector, with 7,845 employees (58%), 
followed by Architecture (1,355 jobs, 10%) and Publishing 
(955 jobs, 7%).

Figure 1  SYMCA Cultural & Creative Industries employment 

 

 
1 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/surveys/informationforbusinesses/businesssurveys/bus

inessregisterandemploymentsurvey  

P
age 37

https://www.ons.gov.uk/surveys/informationforbusinesses/businesssurveys/businessregisterandemploymentsurvey
https://www.ons.gov.uk/surveys/informationforbusinesses/businesssurveys/businessregisterandemploymentsurvey


 4 

The Fifth Sector 2022

P
age 38



 5 

Cluster analysis – using a ‘Location Quotient’ or LQ based on 
the concentration of employment within creative industries 
compared with a national average – suggests that South 
Yorkshire lags both the national average and other ‘M10’ core 
cities in most sectors, with clear evidence of clustering (an LQ 
of 1 or above) in only Architecture, Publishing and Crafts 

(narrowly defined as the manufacture of jewellery) in 
Sheffield. However, the concentration of creative employment 
in London and the South East is such that an LQ of 0.80 or 
above indicates clustering, which would bring Design and 
designer fashion into the frame. 

 

Table 1  LQs for creative industries employment in SYMCA area 

 

 

The Fifth Sector 2022

P
age 39



 6 

Addressing gaps in the official record

It is widely acknowledged, even within the Department for 
Digital, Creative, Media & Sport (DCMS), that the 
methodology for collecting BRES data tends to exclude both 
freelance workers and micro-enterprises with earnings below 
the VAT threshold, which together make up a significant 
proportion of creative employment. To address these gaps, 

we used a method developed over the last five years based 
on LinkedIn data. LinkedIn has 29 million UK members, out of 
a total employed workforce of 33 million; and it uses a set of 
industry codes much more closely aligned to industry 
definitions.

 

Table 2  Comparison of DCMS sectors and LinkedIn industry codes 

 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies 2022 

P
age 40



 7 

We then group these codes by supply chains which more 
closely reflect patterns of employment:

Table 3  LinkedIn industry codes by Supply Chain 

 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies 2022 

 

This analysis indicates a much larger workforce – over 31,000 individuals who identify themselves as being located in South 
Yorkshire. That would suggest a freelance workforce – including those for whom creative employment forms part of a ‘portfolio’ 
career, and those looking or work – of around 18,000 people. That proportion – 60% of the total workforce – is consistent with other 
industry studies, and with the evidence from other parts of the UK where we have carried out a similar analysis. The breakdown of 
employment by supply chain is shown in Figure 2:

P
age 41



 8 

Figure 2  Estimate of SYMCA creative workforce based on analysis of LinkedIn 

 

 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies 2022

P
age 42



 9 

2. Mapping cultural and creative enterprises in South Yorkshire

Similar considerations about the quality of official data apply 
to analysis of the stock of creative businesses. We used a 
combination of data sources to highlight this and to make a 
robust case that the number of creative enterprises in South 
Yorkshire is greater than shown in official statistics. Those 
were: 

• The Inter-Departmental Business Register (IDBR), the 
government’s official business count, extracted from 
the Nomisweb online portal 

• Our own analysis of Companies House data 

• The proprietary FAME database held by the Mayoral 
Combined Authority 

• Beauhurst, another proprietary database, which 
provides up-to-the-minute data about investment and 
financial performance 

We searched the first three of these databases using the SIC 
codes and sub-sector groupings used by DCMS to define 
cultural and creative industries.  

Beauhurst includes other industry and market data which 
leads it to include some businesses which we would not 
typically classify within the cultural and creative sector, so we 
used this for other kinds of comparative analysis, including 
long-term trends in business formation and overall business 
population. 

Comparing our analysis of Companies House with the IDBR 
and FAME data highlights wide discrepancies in estimates 
of CCI business population, as illustrated in Figure 3 below:

P
age 43



 10 

Figure 3  Comparison of Companies House, IDBR and FAME data on creative business counts 

 

The Fifth Sector 2022 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

Advertising
and marketing

Architecture Crafts Design and
designer
fashion

Film,
television,

radio, video
and

photography

IT, software
and computer

services

Publishing Museums,
libraries and

galleries

Music,
performing
and visual

arts

Culture

Comparison of Companies House, IDBR and FAME data

Companies House IDBR FAME

P
age 44



 11 

The Companies House data was manually cleansed to extract several hundred ‘service companies’ for artists, musicians and 
producers from outside the region and Special Purpose Vehicles (eg, film productions) with registered office addresses at two 
specialist accountancy firms in Sheffield and Doncaster. We are confident, therefore, that the figures are robust. Analysing these 
data using the same supply chain definitions applied to the workforce data gives a much clearer indication of the relative strengths 
of ‘Content’ businesses (generating original IP in areas such as film, television, music and computer games) and ‘Services’ firms (in 
Advertising, Marketing, Architecture and Design), all of which are understated in IDBR and Fame: 

Figure 4  South Yorkshire CCI businesses by supply chain (n=4,025) 

 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies 2022  

1,009 

415 

269 

910 

1,422 

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

Content Experiences Originals Services Software

P
age 45



 12 

Location of South Yorkshire’s creative businesses 

Figure 5 shows the location by ward of creative businesses across the region. It shows concentrations of firms in Sheffield city 
centre and suburbs and in the centres of Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham: 

Figure 5  Location of South Yorkshire CCI businesses 

 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies 2022 (n=4,425)  

P
age 46



 13 

Analysis of the same business population by supply chain confirms the size of Sheffield’s creative sector, and its higher proportion 
of Content and Experiences companies. The scale and composition of the sectors is very similar in Barnsley, Doncaster and 
Rotherham.  

Figure 6  South Yorkshire CCI businesses by local authority and supply chain 

 

Barnsley Doncaster Rotherham Sheffield

Software 192 197 252 781

Services 136 170 139 465

Originals 34 43 36 156

Experiences 57 62 43 253

Content 149 119 135 606

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

P
age 47



 14 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies 2022 (n=4,025) 

Looking at the same data through a supply chain lens reinforces the greater scale of the Content, Services and Software supply 
chains in Sheffield.  

Figure 7  South Yorkshire CCI businesses by supply chain and local authority area 

 

Content Experiences Originals Services Software

Sheffield 606 253 156 465 781

Rotherham 135 43 36 139 252

Doncaster 119 62 43 170 197

Barnsley 149 57 34 136 192

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

P
age 48



 15 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies 2022 (n=4,025)

P
age 49



 16 

3. Sector output 

Lack of available financial data – owing to their typically 
small size, fewer than 5% of South Yorkshire’s CCI 
businesses file full accounts at Companies House – 
makes it more difficult to accurately aggregate and 
measure the sector’s economic output. This is 
compounded by the fact that, as noted above, only 
around 40% of the sector’s workforce is in regular 
employment which would allow their contribution to be 
measured through payroll data collected through ONS’s 
Annual Population Survey. 

We have therefore devised a method to calculate GVA 
for Cultural and Creative Industries based on DCMS 
monthly sector GVA estimates.  

Pros 

• DCMS national estimates include the value of 
exports of creative goods and services (not 
available at a sub-regional level of geography) 

• The method is repeatable without additional 
research and can be updated quarterly in line with 
timing of DCMS releases of new data 

Cons 

• To estimate South Yorkshire’s share of national 
output, we have to base this on BRES 
employment data – which, as we have shown 
above, underestimates the size of the total 
workforce 

• We have no specific index of CCI sector 
productivity for South Yorkshire, so have had to 

use a generic ONS index of the sub-region’s 
relative productivity across all sectors  

• The latest available BRES data cover the period 
April 2019 – March 2020, and are still provisional - 
so this an estimate of GVA in the year immediately 
prior to the COVID pandemic. 

Table 4  South Yorkshire CCI sector GVA output 

 

The Fifth Sector 2022 

 

P
age 50



 17 

Interpretation of CCI sector output data 

On the basis of this estimate, South Yorkshire accounts 
for less than 1% of UK creative industries output. GVA of 
the UK creative industries sectors for the calendar year of 
2021 is estimated at £104bn, compared to about £95bn 
for the same measure in 2020. The comparable figure for 
2019 was just over £107bn.2 

Surveys undertaken over the last 18 months suggest that 
the economic impact of Covid was not felt consistently 
across the UK’s creative industries, with the burden 
falling disproportionately on live events sectors  - live 
music revenues collapsed by around 90% in 20203 - and 
areas with weaker creative economies. However, we will 
not be able to estimate its effect on sector GVA on this 
basis until at least the publication of provisional BRES 
2021 data (expected in September 2022).  

However, there are some more positive interpretations of 
the data.  

• These estimates are calculated on the basis that 
South Yorkshire’s overall productivity is 81.81% of 
the national average. If South Yorkshire’s CCIs 
are as productive as the national average, the 
sector output would be in excess of £1 billion 
per annum. If the sector were as productive on 

 
2 Creative Industries Council: Positive Trend In Economic Recovery Of 
UK Creative Industries From Pandemic, 4 May 2022. 

https://www.thecreativeindustries.co.uk/facts-figures/positive-trend-in-

gva-of-uk-creative-industries-from-pandemic  

 

average as the South East, this would increase to 
nearly £1.4 billion. 

• The estimates are prepared using employment 
data which is likely to understate the size of the 
sector in South Yorkshire.  

• This estimate does not reflect other indirect and 
induced outputs – including visitor economy 
income related to attendance of cultural events. 
For example, the value of music tourism alone in 
Yorkshire and Humber in 2019 was estimated at 
£264 million4 - if that were distributed in proportion 
to its population, South Yorkshire’s economy 
would benefit by an additional £68 million. 

• As a sub-sector of creative industries, investment 
in arts and culture has direct and indirect 
benefits to the economy. DCMS modelling shows 
that for every 1 FTE worker directly employed by 
the arts and culture industry a further 0.62 FTE 
jobs are supported through indirect effects. 
Furthermore, 0.84 FTE jobs are supported through 
induced impacts (see Figure 8 for definitions.) This 
implies that for every 1 FTE worker directly 
employed, a total footprint of 2.46 FTE workers is 
supported in the wider economy. 

3 UK Music (2021). This Is Music 2021. 

https://www.ukmusic.org/research-reports/this-is-music-2021/  

4 UK Music (2020) Music Tourism Map 

https://www.ukmusic.org/research-reports/uk-map/  

P
age 51

https://www.thecreativeindustries.co.uk/facts-figures/positive-trend-in-gva-of-uk-creative-industries-from-pandemic
https://www.thecreativeindustries.co.uk/facts-figures/positive-trend-in-gva-of-uk-creative-industries-from-pandemic
https://www.ukmusic.org/research-reports/this-is-music-2021/
https://www.ukmusic.org/research-reports/uk-map/


 18 

Figure 8  Cebr illustration of total economic footprint of arts 
and culture5 

 

 
5 Centre for Economics and Business Research, Contribution of the arts and 

culture industry to the UK economy: A Cebr report for Arts Council England, 

May 2020. p. 5. 

Taking these factors into consideration, we estimate that the 
total economic output of cultural and creative industries in 
South Yorkshire is closer to £2 billion per annum. 

P
age 52



 19 

 

 

 

P
age 53



 20 

Trends analysis: new business formation and survival 

There is clear evidence of the rapid growth of creative industries across South Yorkshire since 2012. Beauhurst data (which gives a 
higher estimate of overall business numbers, as outlined above) indicates that the stock of active creative businesses has more 
than trebled in the last decade, from below 1,500 companies to over 5,000: 

Figure 9  Growth of creative sector 2012-2021 

 

 

Beauhurst, 2022 

P
age 54



 21 

Looking in more detail, this shows that business formations increased above the long-term growth trend during the first lockdown – 
which is more apparent in Figure 10: 

Figure 10  South Yorkshire CCI company formations and cessations 2017-22 

 

Beauhurst 2022 

Analysis of the 975 new creative business formations in the period from 23 March 2020 – the date of the first ‘lockdown’ – until end 
2021 show a higher proportion of Content and Services businesses (shown in light green in  

 

Figure 11) than in the overall business population: 

P
age 55



 22 

 

 

Figure 11  Supply chain analysis of CCI company formations 23 Mach 2020 – 31 December 2021 

 

P
age 56



 23 

 

The Fifth Sector/Curator Technologies analysis of Companies House data. 2022 (n=975)

Barnsley Doncaster Rotherham Sheffield

Content 29 45 44 192

Experiences 7 10 9 60

Originals 9 26 10 42

Services 28 50 45 125

Software 28 45 40 131

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

P
age 57



 24 

Interpreting the data on business formations 

There is no single explanation for this but there are both 
pandemic-related and other factors which may be contributing 
to growth: 

• Individuals and teams being made redundant deciding 
to start up their own businesses 

• Individuals in receipt of furlough opting to use their time 
to start a business 

• Individuals taking advantage of more flexible working 
practices to relocate from London and the South East 
for reasons including wanting to be closer to family, 
cheaper housing/larger gardens, quality of life 

• Increased inward investment in film and television 
production, boosted by factors including: 

o Greatly increased investment in production by 
‘streaming’ companies (eg, Netflix, Amazon, 
Disney +) 

o Increase in the quotas for ‘Out of London’ 
production for UK Public Sector Broadcasters 
(BBC, ITV, Channel 4, Channel 5) 

o Screen Yorkshire’s active promotion of the 
region’s facilities, locations and funding support 
for independent productions 

o The relocation of Channel 4 
o Demand in other creative sectors – eg, 

computer games – stimulating specialisation and 
growth in the supply chain for both specialist 
content, technology and marketing services 

 
6 The Fifth Sector analysis of Beauhurst, March 2022 – n >5,000 companies 

The creative growth paradox 

More in-depth analysis of financial data and evidence of public 
funding for R&D reveals a less positive picture: 

• Only 4.8% of South Yorkshire’s CCI sector businesses 
file full accounts (i.e., the remainder are below the 
statutory reporting threshold) 

• 101 companies – less than 2% have accessed grants 
for collaborative R&D at any point in their existence 

• 36 businesses have secured equity investment 

• The region is home to only eight CCI sector university 
spinouts 

• Only six of South Yorkshire’s CCI companies meet the 
definition of ‘scale up’ (20% growth year-on-year)6 

This seems to present a paradox. How can the low levels of 
productivity and investment in R&D observed at a ‘micro’ level 
translate into the ‘macro’ picture of a sector which has 
consistently outgrown the rest of the economy for more than a 
decade?  

Some of the explanations for this are structural. As highlighted 
in the section on sector output, above, the project-based, 
freelance and micro-enterprise dominated nature of the sector 
creates significant gaps in the official data record. The sector 
evidently derives a significant part of its economic value from 
the creation and exploitation of original intellectual property; 
but most of this is protected by copyright rather than more 
easily quantifiable patents and design rights.  Value in the 

P
age 58



 25 

creative sector is primarily knowledge-based, with only a 
limited proportion of value generated by manufacturing - 
meaning that the footprint of its production infrastructure is 
often transient and hard to measure.  

‘Doing things weirdly’ 

But behavioural factors matter too, arguably more so than 
structural ones. The motivations of creative entrepreneurs 

differ markedly in some respects from their peers in finance, 
manufacturing or even the technology sectors with which they 
are often bracketed. That is highlighted by the illustration 
below, taken from a presentation by a computer games 
company at the National Videogames Museum in Sheffield in 
March 2022: 

Figure 12 Doing things weirdly 

 

@State_of_Play, March 2022 

P
age 59



 26 

This slide brings out the different motivations and operating 
models employed by many creative businesses: 

• Emphasis on intrinsic value rather than a business plan 

• Project-based working, drawing on additional resource 
through collaboration rather than investment or 
acquisition of talent 

• Portfolio working – the necessity of diversifying effort 
across projects which will keep cash flowing whilst 
larger projects are in development 

• Process innovation – described here as ‘new ways of 
working’ – as part of the creative process, rather than a 
separate activity 

• Most of all, ‘doing things weirdly’ – the importance of 
doing that which is distinctive, rather than following a 
business plan.  

‘Doing things weirdly’ is a feature of 
creative industries, not a ‘bug’.  

To take a term from software development, this intuitive, 
unplanned way of working is, ‘a feature, not a bug’; it is a 
proven business model and a deliberate choice, not a failure 
of the business owner to take responsibility for the outcome. 
The assets generated are not just tangible forms of IP – a 
game, recording, show, artefact – but reputational goods and 
knowledge exchange which result from collaboration. 

One of the most significant challenges faced by SYMCA and 
local authorities is how to structure investment in the sector in 
a way which makes available working capital to support, 
encourage and develop those successful creative behaviours, 
rather than requiring security for those investments. If 
successful, this will: 

• Ratchet up the knowledge intensity and innovation of 
individual creative entrepreneurs and microbusinesses, 

• Seed the development of more dynamic clusters and 
supply chains 

• Provide a spur to productivity, employment and 
business growth in the process.  

Public investment in risk-taking – including de minimis grants - 
can stimulate and help unlock far greater levels of private 
investment from retail banks, angel investors, venture 
capitalists. One of the reasons why the performance of South 
Yorkshire’s creative sector lags other regions is that public 
investment in the region has focused heavily on advanced 
manufacturing and where investment goes, perception 
follows. Underinvestment in the sector means that, with 
notable exceptions such as Barnsley’s DMC, there is a lack of 
specialist physical infrastructure; but more important, it means 
that the region is lacking in the ‘soft’ infrastructure to support 
collaboration, investment in skills and the perception amongst 
local people that creative industries represents a viable and 
worthwhile career choice. 

P
age 60



 27 

4. People and skills 

Figure 13  Creative skills pathways

Creative skills pathways 

Research into creative skills pathways followed the same 
sector supply chain definitions used for workforce and 
business mapping. Under the digital pathway, the skills work 
focuses on education and training in creative digital skills.  

We found a total of 1,013 courses across South Yorkshire and 
wider travel-to-work area, with 20 providers in the South 
Yorkshire region offering 510 courses. There were a further 

36 providers offering 503 courses on offer in a wider area 
covering Leeds, Kirklees, Wakefield and York. 

The vast majority of these were offered through HE and 
Colleges; although there has been a massive expansion in 
number and range of online courses over lockdown, driven by 
demand for creative skills around the film and television 
supply chain, including those delivered by Screen Yorkshire 
(which are therefore included in the count for Leeds, although 
delivered County-wide and beyond.)

P
age 61



 28 

Table 5  Creative skills delivery 

 

Source: The Fifth Sector/Morra 2022

Progression routes 

Our study also looked at the progression routes within each 
pathway; the division of courses between: 

• Apprenticeships 

• T-Levels (of which there is as yet very limited delivery 
in creative subjects, with the exception of one digital 
creative framework) 

• Further Education 

• Higher Education 

• Continuing Professional Development (CPD).  

Detailed findings have been shared in the form of a 
searchable ‘dashboard’ for use by SYMCA and partners. 

[Summary of the breakdown of pathways to follow in final 
report] 

P
age 62



 29 

Within South Yorkshire, Sheffield accounts for the majority 
(55%) of creative skills delivery. 

Figure 14 Location of learning/skills course across South 
Yorkshire 

 

The Fifth Sector/Morra 2022

55%

24%

12%

9%

Sheffield Doncaster Rotherham Barnsley

P
age 63



 30 

Across Yorkshire, Leeds has the largest course offer, 
including the overwhelming majority of CPD provision. 

Figure 15  Location of learning/skills courses across 
Yorkshire 

 

The Fifth Sector/Morra 2022 

 

 

 

P
age 64



 31 

Equality, diversity and inclusion 

Context 

This piece of work was set against a backdrop of social, 
economic, and civic inequality and activism. 

Black Lives Matter catalysed awareness of structural 
economic and social inequalities and injustices across 
society, including the cultural and creative sector. This 
was compounded by the impact of Covid-19 across the 
board but with a disproportionate impact on black and 
Asian people, disabled people and those living with life 
limiting or underlying health conditions. 

For South Yorkshire, this was overlaid with the multiple 
indices of deprivation and poor health outcomes, and so 
increasing diversity and inclusion is treated as a given in 
our analysis. 

Across South Yorkshire, there is a very strong and urgent 
need to improve representation so that the creative, 
cultural and visitor sectors are reflective of the diversity of 
the region. Existing business support and skill 
development fails to truly reflect the diversity of local, 
national and international audiences, visitors and 
consumers the workforce needs to look like the people it 
seeks to attract. A lack of skilled diverse talent to grow 
the cultural and creative economy and assets has a direct 
correlation on the impact of diversifying audiences 

What do we mean by diversity? 

The protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual 
orientation. 

Inclusion needs to reflect the broadest protected 
characteristics. For South Yorkshire, this means that 
socio-economic background and the intersectionality of 
socio-economic background and the other characteristics 
assume particular importance, taking into account such 
factors as zero-hour contracts and gender-based care 
responsibilities. 

Our findings, and those of Opus Independents’ wider 
engagement with the arts, culture and heritage sector 
suggest there are equity actions to be implemented to 
achieve this. These fall into broader categories: 

Equity- talent 

There are limited opportunities to progress, whether at 
entry-level, mid-career or in senior positions, resulting in 
skills gaps and shortages at all levels of the creative 
industries and a talent drain. Those gaps exacerbate a 
lag in the growth cycle of creative businesses, which in 
turn impedes the development of viable career paths for 
new entrants, early career artists and more experienced 
creative and cultural professionals. 

Neither formal skills and training provision nor existing 
business support networks, including South Yorkshire’s 
public-sector backed innovation and scale up ecosystem 
and university partnerships, reflect the critical and 
growing importance of engaging creative cross-over and 
knowledge exchange between sectors. South Yorkshire’s 
creative entrepreneurs and practitioners need a 
framework which supports an agile, fluid, opportunist 
approach to skills, building on the regional legacy of 
creative and digital experimentation exemplified by Fon, 
Warp, Cabaret Voltaire and others. 

P
age 65



 32 

Failures both to develop diverse talent from local 
communities and to attract and retain it from elsewhere 
are reflected in the underperformance, lesser scale and 
lack of productivity of South Yorkshire’s creative 
industries relative to other city regions. 

Equity- audiences/participants 

In line with our interviews, and the express wishes of 
those with lived experiences, and aligned with new 
initiatives such as ACE’s Priority Places and their 
emphasis on inclusion and relevance in their Investment 
Principles, there is a clear need to move beyond 
instrumentalism when referencing communities and 
reframe cultural engagement and co-production, design 
and creation. The region presents some examples of 
good practice in this respect – notably Rotherham’s 
culture-led approach to the renewal of its governance and 
services delivery approach – but best practice needs to 
be shared and become universal. 

South Yorkshire still reflects disproportionate under-
employment/self-employment across ethnicity, LGBTQI+ 
and disability; participants and interviewees with those 
protected characteristics felt a definite inequality. 

Inclusion 

With very few exceptions, current cultural provision and 
access to training, jobs and opportunities do not take 
account of or reflect any nuanced diversity. This is a 
serious concern in terms of “levelling up” and optimising 
life chances for people – including young people – across 
South Yorkshire. There is little or no evidence that 
consideration has been given to lived experience or any 
kind of diversity and socio-economic challenges within 

existing training, private sector networks or public sector 
support for creative industries. 

Other considerations also need to be balanced: cost of 
transport, access to kit, education and literacy equity, and 
equality of inclusive access. This could include access to 
work education for employers, multiple formats (easy 
read, video etc) for inclusive recruitment and an 
understanding of embedded cultural and social 
perceptions which lead to ‘imposter syndrome’ in parallel 
with judgements on talent (education and experience) 
and what constitutes cultural value and taste. 

As long as underrepresentation exists, however, the 
sector and the networks can feel exclusive and inhibiting. 
Simultaneously, this means the sector is not creating 
content which reflects diversity as the potential to 
address global audiences, and missing the opportunity 
for South Yorkshire to be a market leader. 

There is a role here for SYMCA to convene and hold 
space; to broker and facilitate. Working in this way can 
address equality, diversity and inclusion cohesively and 
collectively and in a way that is reflective of the people of 
South Yorkshire as it is now and how it will be. Ensuring 
that EDI is an approach not just an outcome means it can 
flex and adapt as both local and national societal 
environments change. 

P
age 66



 33 

5. Local authority consultation

Consultation with the four local authorities in Barnsley, 
Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield revealed both a breadth 
of ambition and a distinctive and differentiated focus on 
opportunities to invest in growing creative jobs and 
businesses in each area. 

Each local authority has existing or emerging strengths which 
respond to the differing identities and capabilities of each 
place. For example: 

• Barnsley’s initiative in establishing DMC and the sector 
specific Launchpad business support service has paid 
dividends in terms of the ability to attract and retain 
investment across digital and creative supply chains 

• Doncaster recognises the opportunities presented by 
its logistical advantages (East Coast Main Line, airport, 
two motorways) to bring forward capital developments 
for creative production as a way to catalyse and 
accelerate the regeneration of its city centre  

• Rotherham’s ground-breaking decision to use culture to 
rebuild community trust and cohesion has created the 
conditions for a transformative approach to the role of 
young people in culture, manifest in the Children’s 
Capital of Culture 

• Sheffield is forging partnerships with its cultural and 
educational institutions which build upon its legacy as 
an incubator of musicians and designers and its status 
as the UK’s greenest city to promote the region to a 
new generation of creatives and investors 

The capital and sector initiatives discussed at the respective 
round tables were complementary; but that is more the result 
of serendipity than a coordinated approach to sector 
investment. Therefore, one of the recommendations from this 
work is that SYMCA should establish a regional panel which 
brings together planning, investment and regeneration, skills, 
business support, cultural and creative specialist team 
members for the MCA and local authorities to help shape the 
business case for strategic intervention and support 
development of funding applications for individual projects. 

The evidence base gathered through this research will 
complement data held by the local authorities in developing 
their own plans and business cases for investment. 

Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham have opportunities to 
leverage their status as areas eligible for funding for ‘levelling 
up’ through culture, complemented by Arts Council England 
priority area status in the case of Barnsley and Rotherham. 
Other opportunities within the third round of Cultural 
Development Funding, including support for high-growth 
creative businesses, present an opportunity for SYMCA to 
demonstrate leadership and leverage Sheffield’s larger 
business base. 

Looking further afield, the distinctiveness and excellence of 
some of the approaches taken at local level present SYMCA 
with an opportunity to take leadership of initiatives to develop 
a distinctive Northern place-based approach to culture, 
building on its engagement with the NP11 cultural strategy,

P
age 67



 34 

6. Recommendations

Skills 

As creative technology rapidly advances, more and more 
creative workers will need “cross-over” or “fusion” skills, both 
creative and technical. The next five years will see growth in 
digital occupations both related to the creative industries and 
the wider technology sector. 

In this rapidly changing digital environment, the collaboration 
between creative business and education has never been 
more essential There is an opportunity to grow an education 
collaboration network, which would have a clear and more 
cohesive approach to the higher-level skills needed for the 
creative sector. 

SYMCA should work with HE partners to encourage them to 
fill the gap in professional skills by developing and offering 
more short courses more aligned to business need for the 
sector. 

More targeted marketing to the sector (in a language they 
understand) could increase take-up of existing business 
support (eg, Skills Accelerator). Marketing should address 
both promotion of existing third-party support (eg, Screen 
Yorkshire, PPL Momentum Accelerator) and the growth of 
new online courses for the sector.  

Film and television 

City and regional investment marketing should more 
effectively communicate the strengths of established high-
quality regional creative assets including the Children’s Media 
Festival and Sheffield DocFest. 

South Yorkshire has been ‘free riding’ on Screen Yorkshire’s 
inward investment, talent development and crew database 
services for film and television. This reduces any influence 
SYMCA and local partners may have on investment 
decisions, limits opportunities for South Yorkshire residents to 
benefit from skills development opportunities and is unlikely to 
be sustainable. SYMCA should agree a package of support to 
ensure that local talent, supply chain businesses and 
locations continue to benefit from Screen Yorkshire’s 
expertise, talent development and investment marketing. 

The growth of short-form content – including on platforms 
such as TikTok and Instagram – offers both creative and 
commercial opportunities to a wider and more diverse 
community of content makers and marketers. Development of 
those skills pathways and routes to market should sit 
alongside those for film and high-end television. 

Screen businesses should be engaged in identifying, planning 
and - where appropriate - lobbying for investment in the 
required infrastructure, both in terms of new capital 
developments and to enable the full potential of remote 
working and workflows. 

P
age 68



 35 

Music 

Sheffield, in particular, has an international reputation as a 
seedbed for innovative new music. If this is to remain a ‘live’ 
legacy, concerted action of public and private sector actors is 
needed to ensure that musicians and music enterprises 
across South Yorkshire can successfully develop their talent 
and market opportunities. 

Recommendations of the 2019 Sheffield City Region Music 
Report7 still apply: 

• Opportunities for emerging talent – ensuring that all 
young people, regardless of their background, should 
have access to music in education and should be able 
to pursue a career in music. 

• Protecting grassroots music venues – offering business 
rate relief and help with licencing to venues as well as 
improving accessibility at venues for deaf and disabled 
audiences and performers. 

• Developing music businesses – leverage powers to 
support the growth of the music businesses which in 
turn will increase employment and productivity. 

• Integrating Transport – creating a transport system that 
is fit for purpose and that supports the night time 
economy. 

• Reaching out to every corner of the region – Mapping 
all music activity across the region recognising that 

 
7 UK Music (2019). Sheffield City Region Music Report 

https://www.ukmusic.org/research-reports/sheffield-city-region-music-report/ 

different parts of the region have different needs and 
challenges 

In addition: 

• PRS Music has recently imposed a 60% cut in funding 
for PRS Foundation, which sponsors the PPL 
Momentum Accelerator for Yorkshire (branded as 
Launchpad - https://www.launchpad-music.com) and 
through it supports the development of both musicians 
and music entrepreneurs across Yorkshire. SYMCA 
needs to speak to the organisers to see what further 
support may be needed to sustain this valuable 
provision. 

• SYMCA and local authorities should establish a music 
policy forum to look at adopting a consistent approach 
to issues with a direct impact on the promotion of live 
music, including: 

o Enforce Agent of Change requirements in 
planning for new developments which place 
responsibility for issues such as soundproofing 
and access on the developer rather than 
threatening the continuation of established 
music venues 

o Licensing of venues (in particular, to ensure that 
there is no discrimination against venues 
promoting urban music genres) 

o Policing and public safety 

P
age 69

https://www.launchpad-music.com/


 36 

Computer games and digital content 

South Yorkshire has significant ‘anchor’ investors in computer 
games and wider areas of digital content and convergent 
media. The larger players, including Sumo and Zoo Digital, 
generate significant demand for jobs and skills and contribute 
tens of millions of pounds to the regional economy each year. 
In turn, they support a supply chain of smaller digital creative 
businesses and skilled contractors essential to the region’s 
capacity to respond in an agile way to future opportunities 
across games, film, television and short form content of all 
kinds. 

The region also benefits from the experience and expertise of 
Barnsley DMC, in particular the successful Launchpad 
business support programme (not to be confused with the 
music Launchpad cited above.) 

Every region in the UK experiences skills gaps and shortages 
in games – in some cases coinciding with those in other high 
value creative and digital content sectors. The action taken by 
Sumo to seek Registered Training Provider status to address 
its own needs offers potential to catalyse a wider public-
private skills partnership including both HE, FE and smaller 
supply chain businesses to ensure that South Yorkshire 
becomes the best place to acquire skills for making games 
and digital content. 

That needs to be matched by a campaign to promote the 
value of local creative and digital producers to angel and VC 
investors, and to ensure that the regional business support 
and innovation ecosystem is attuned to the needs of digital 
content entrepreneurs.

Equality, diversity and inclusion 

• Increase lived experience or awareness amongst 
commissioners of skills training and business support. 

• Invest in the recommendations and reputations of 
diverse led creative businesses and producers (there 
are some significant people in South Yorkshire). 

• Collaborate with disabled/neurodiverse/D/deaf 
practitioners and disabled led organisations to look at 
inclusive access framework for creative occupations 
(not just physical access but well-being, remote 
working, adjustments etc.) for disabled, D/deaf and 
neurodiverse people). 

• Collaborate with LGBTQI+ practitioners and queer led 
organisations to look at inclusive access framework for 
LGBTQI+ artists, creatives and audiences. 

• Collaborate with ethnically diverse practitioners and 
ethnic-led organisations to look at inclusive access 
framework for ethnically diverse artists, creatives and 
audiences. 

These could be addressed through 

• Employer training programmes on disability access to 
work. 

• Employer training programmes and resources on 
inclusive recruitment. 

• Leadership development (early and mid-career). 

 

P
age 70



 
  

Page 71

Agenda Item 13



 
 

Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

03 November 2022 
 

LEP Forward Plan 2022/23 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Martin Swales, Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 
 
Report Author(s): 
Andy Gates, Assistant Director External Affairs  
andrew.gates@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
This report seeks feedback on the proposed LEP Forward Plan for 2022/23. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Good governance enables the MCA and LEP to pursue their ambitions and objectives in the 
most effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses 
in South Yorkshire.   
 

Recommendations   
Members consider proposed Forward Plan for 2022/23 and agree any changes or additional 
items to be scheduled. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
N/A  
 

 
1.  Background  

Page 72



  
1.1 The LEP Forward Plan for 2022/23, is required to facilitate the Board in fulfilling its 

role.  
  
1.2 The work plan is reviewed at every meeting to ensure it remains on schedule. 
  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Proposed meetings dates 

  

2.2 The proposed LEP Forward Plan is attached at appendix A. This document aims to 
ensure the Local Enterprise Partnership Board is appropriately sighted on key 
issues and activities in a timely manner and ensure that items relevant to the 
Board’s role are appropriately scheduled. 

  

3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 
 Members consider Forward Plan for 2022/23 and agree any changes or additional 

items to be schedule. 
  
4. Consultation on Proposal: 
  
4.1 N/A 
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 N/A 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 N/A 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 N/A 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 N/A 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 N/A 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 N/A 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 N/A 

Page 73



  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice  

 
12.1 N/A 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A LEP Forward Plan 2022/23 
   

Background Papers 
N/A 
  
  

 

Page 74



Local Enterprise Partnership – Forward Plan 

03 November 2022 

 

Meeting Date Suggested Agenda items 

12 January 23 

 

• The South Yorkshire Economy - Presentation 

• Skills Strategy development: discussion  

• Destination Management Marketing 

• Arts, Culture, Heritage 

• Brand, Narrative and Reputation 

9 March 23 

 

• The South Yorkshire Economy - Presentation 

• International Strategy  

• Skills Strategy development: discussion  

 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Notes of Last Meeting
	7 Cost of Living Response
	8 UK Shared Prosperity Fund Implementation
	9 Investment Zones
	10 Cultural and Creative Industries Mapping
	10i. Cultural and Creative Industries

	13 Forward Plan
	13i. Foward Plan 22 23


